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Farmerôs Market  
  10 am - 2 pm COMMUNITY CENTRE  

Free Christmas Crafts for Kids Upper Level Community Centre 
Kinny Elf Hunt Free Kidôs Surprises various locations see page 9 

Special Prize at Kinmount Artisans Marketplace! 
Santa at Legion Meet 2 pm at Post Office & follow him to Legion  

Free Family Lunch  - Gifts for kids 10 & under 
 

Christmas Music Night 7 pm Galway Hall 
Celtic Music with Everything Fitz  

Desserts, Christmas Loonie Auction - Tickets $15  705.488.2635 

Thursday Dec. 3  
Christmas Tree 

Lighting  
6:30 pm  

Kinmount Train Station 
Carolling  

Bonfire & Treats  
Free Photos with Santa 

  8:30 am - 11 am 
St. James 

Anglican Church 
Crego Street                  

FREE! 

 

 

Saturday Dec. 5 
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st township in Peterborough 

County is Otonabee Town-

ship. It borders the Otonabee 

River on the west and Rice 

Lake on the south. It was the 

earliest settled township in the 

county and still contains some 

of the best farmland. Otona-

bee Township is primarily a 

rural township, containing 

only one village: Keene. Most 

residents of this area travel to 

Peterbough City or even Nor-

wood to do their business.  

Keene was founded in 1824 

as a mill site on the Indian 

River, just upstream of Rice 

Lake. The founder was a Dr 

Thomas Gilchrist, an early 

settler from New Hampshire, 

who set up a badly needed 

grist mill 2 miles up river 

from Rice Lake at the water-

falls.. The site was originally 

called Gilchristôs Mills. When 

a post office was established 

in 18 it was called Otonabee. 

But Dr Gilchrist himself 

wanted the name ñKeeneò for 

the post office; in honour of a 

town in his native New 

Hampshire, and so the name 

was changed to Keene. 

The pioneer hamlet serviced a 

growing farming community 

with such services as hotels, 

general stores, blacksmiths, a 

wagon maker, shoe makers, 

etc. The Indian River provided 

power for several mills. Goods 

could be shipped by water via 

Rice Lake. Roads were terrible 

in the early 1800s, and it was 

easier to get to Peterborough by 

water than by land. This changed 

in 1881 when the Grand Trunk 

Railway ran a branch line be-

tween Peterborough and Nor-

wood. The station ended up 2 

miles north of the village, which 

required a short trip from town 

to the station. In its heyday, the 

Grand Trunk ran 4 trains a day 

through the area.  

After the lumber business de-

clined, Keene relied on the agri-

cultural sector for its prosperity. 

The grist mill churned out flour. 

Cheese factories predominated in 

the township after 1880, and 

Ontario cheese became famous, 

especially in the British market. 

The proximity to Rice Lake also 

helped the local economy as 

tourism flourished on the famous 

waterway. Keene was home to 

the Otonabee Township Fair 

until the 1920s with huge crowds 

and plenty of agricultural compe-

titions. The waterfront was lined 

with boats carrying fairgoers 

during fair day. Keene also was 

home to the local militia compa-

ny and had a drill shed. It also 

has a Royal Canadian Legion, 

Otonabee municipal offices and 

other trappings befitting a town-

ship headquarters. A township hall 

was constructed in 1875 complete 

with a large clock tower. However, 

the clock was just a fake and didnôt 

actually run. Each of the 4 faces 

were set for different times as a 

joke! 

The bridge over the Indian River 

was one of the few covered bridges 

in the area. The Bank of Toronto 

set up a branch in 1800s Keene. It 

was 

the 

du-

ty 

of 

one 

clerk to sleep overnight at the 

bank with a loaded pistol under 

his pillow. No robberies were 

recorded! Modern Keene has a 

large sports complex to cater to 

the recreational needs of the 

local Township. 

 

Keene circa 1900 

Good Luck Lexi! 

Alexis Vahey from Kinmount 

will be competing this month 

with the Canadian Mounted 

Team at the world champion-

ships in Florida. Lexie is  a mem-

ber of the Victoria Pony Club. 

Watch for results next issue. 

 

At right:  Lexie in action playing 

for the Victoria Pony Club 
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Four miles up the Indian River 

from Keene (and 6 miles from 

Rice Lake), sits the small 

hamlet of Lang. A  sawmill 

was built on the second rapids 

on the Indian River around 

1825. A hamlet christened 

Allendale  Mills grew up 

around the mill site. For sever-

al years, the hamlet rivaled its 

neighbour Keene as the largest 

centre in Otonabee Township. 

In 1846 Thomas Short built a 

large stone grist mill at the 

dam on the Indian River. This 

building was so well built, it 

still stands today and even 

operates as part of Lang Pio-

neer Village! The mill site was 

so popular other water pow-

ered industries such as a tan-

nery, saw mill and carding 

mill sprang up at the village 

site. When it came time to set 

up a post office, the name Al-

lendale Mills was rejected 

because there was already a 

village of the 

same name in 

Simcoe County. 

So the name Lang 

was chosen after 

Squire William 

Lang, a prominent 

settler in the area.  

Eventually Lang 

Village was 

eclipsed by the 

nearby village of 

Keene and be-

came a backwater 

hamlet. The Lang 

grist mill was the 

main industry and 

operated until the 

1960s! (well over 

100 years!). The 

huge stone mill had 

4 sets of grinding 

stones: two for the 

use of local farmers 

on a percentage 

deal and two for 

commercial pro-

duction. In an aver-

age year, the mill 

produced 6,000 -

Lang Pioneer Village 

705-488-1349 

Tell our advertisers  
you saw their ad in the  

Kinmount Gazette!  
 

8,000 barrels of flour for sale 

plus the local grists. The mill was 

water powered, but had a 40hp 

engine for backup in case the 

Indian River experienced low 

water levels. The Lang Mill mar-

keted its flour under the 

ñNevadaò brand name.  

The historic mill was scheduled 

to close (and needed restoration) 

when the County of Peterborough 

purchased it in 1964. It was a 

perfect excuse to set up a county 

pioneer museum with the mill as 

its centre piece. A further 25 

acres of land was added and the 

Lang Pioneer Village grew up 

around the mill. Eventually over 

25 pioneer structures were ac-

quired, relocated to Lang and 

restored to their former glory. 

Many of the buildings were sup-

plied by the townships of Peter-

borough County, making it a true 

County Museum.  


